
CLOSED 

CASE UNITED STATES DISTRTCT COLRT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLOfUDA 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

PLANTIFF, Case KO. 05-20441 -Civ-MORENOiGAXBER 

GOLD LEAF DISTRTBLTION, CO., a 
Florida corpor;ltion, 

LUZ AMPORO UG,4RTE, AKJA 
LUZ UGARTE, individually and as an 
officer of the corporation, and 

JOSE V. UGARTE, individually and as an officer 
of the corporation, 

JUDGMENT A N D  ORDER OF PERMANENT 
JNJL'NCmOF AGAINST DEFENDANTS 

NTRODUCnON 

On February 14,2005, a Complaint for Civil Penalties, Consumer Redress, Permanent 

Injunction and Other Equitable Relief against the Defendants, was fled in this Court by the 

Plaintiff, the United States of America. The complaint alleged, inter alia that  Defendants were 

selling 6anchises wifhout complying with the requiremrnts of the Federal Trade Commission's 

(the "FTC" or "Commission") Franchise Rule, 16 C.F.R. 5 436.2(a). The complaint also alleged 



tba~ Defendants violated the Federal Tradc Commission Act  ("FTC Act"), 15 U.S.C. 35(a). 

Defendants were personally served viith a summons and complaint on or about February 15, 

2005. Defendants failed to appear znd, pursuant to Rule 55 ofthe FederaI Rules of Civil 

Procedure, on April S, 2005, the Clerk of Court entcrcd default zgzinst them. 

Plaintiff has moved the Court to isruc a permanent injunction against Defendants, and to 

impose a civil penalty against Defendants. 

THEREFORE, the Court being fully advised in the premises, it is hereby 

ORDERED, ADJUDGED, .AND DECREED that 

1. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter and the parties pursuant to 28. 

U.S.C. $4  1331, 133714,1345 and 1355, and 15 U.S,C. $9 4S(m)(l)(A), 53@), 56(a), and 5%. 

2. Venue is proper as to all parties in the Southern District of Florida. 

3. The activities of the Defendants are in or affecting commerce, as defined in 

Section 4 ofthe FTC Act, I5 U.S.C. 9 44. 

4. The complaint states a claim upon which relief may be granted against- the 

Defendants, under Sections 5(a), 5(m)(l)(A), 9,13(b) and 19 ofthe FTC Act, 15 U.S,C. $$4S(a), 

45(m)(l)(A), 49,53(b), and 57%. 

5. Entry of th is  Order is in the public interest 

DEFbITI[ONS 

For the purpose of this Order, the following definitions shall apply 

1. "Asset'mems any legal or equitable interest in, or right or claim .to, any real and 

personal property, including without limitation, chattels, goods, inswummts, equipment, fixtures, 



gmeral intangibles, leaseholds, mail or olher deliveries, invcn~ory, checks, notes, accounb, 

credits, contracts, receivables, sllares of stock, and all cash, whcrever located. 

2. "Busmess Venture" means any written or oral business arrangernenf however 

denominated, whether or not covered by the Francluse Rule, in which 3 participant or purchaser: 

a. pays consideration for the right or means to ofkr,  sell, or distribute goods 

or services (whether or not identified by a trademark, scrvice mark, trade name, 

advertising, or o t h e ~  comrncrcial symbol); and 

b. receives the promise of, or actual, advice, insmction, cr assistance 

(including, but not limited to, referrals to any persons providing or promising location 

s e ~ c e s ) ,  in connection with: (1) the establishment, maintenance, or operation o f a  new 

business, or (2) the entry by an existing business into a new line or type of business. 

3. 'Defendants" means the Corporate Defendant and Individual Defendants. The 

"Corponle Defendant" is Gold Leaf Distributi~n Company, a Florida corporntion. The 

"lndividuai Defendants" are Luz Amporo Uga-te and Jose V. Ugarte, individually and as 

officers of the Corporate Defendant. 

4. The "Franchise Rule" or "Rule" means the E;TC Trade Regulation Rule entitled 

"'Disclosure Requirements and Prohibitions concerning Franchising and BuSiness Opportunity 

Venturss," 16 C.F.R. Part 436. 

5. "Franchise" and 'Tmchisor"are d e h e d  as those terms are d e h e d  in Sections 

436.2(a) and (c) of the Franchise Rule, 16 C.F.R $ 436.2(a) and (c), and include "business 

opportunity ventures" as defined in Sections 436.2(a)(l)(ii) and (2) of the Rule, and discussed in 



the FTC's Final hkerpretivc Gulde for the Franchise Rule, 44 Fcd. Reg. 39966-68 (August 24, 

1979). The term "franchise" In Lhls Order shall also enconlpsss any successor definition of 

"franchse," "business opportunity" and "business opportunity ventue" in any future trade 

rcgulation rule or rules that may be promulgated by the Conunission to mo&f$ or superscdc the 

Franchise Rule, in whole or part, from the dale any such rule takes erfect. 

6. "Income-generating product or service" means any product or senlice designed, 

inlendcd, or represented to be capable of generating income on behalf of the person to whom it is 

sold. 

7. "Franchse broker" is defmed as that term is defied in Section 436.2(j) of the 

Franchise Rule, 16 C,F.R. $ 436.20). The term "Franchise broker" in this Order shall also 

encompass any other entity through which the banchisor sells franchises, including, but not 

limited to, subh-anchisors, master ki-anchisees, or regonal franchisees. 

8. "Person" means a natural person, organization or other legd entity, including a 

corporation, parlnership, proprietorship, association, or cooperative, or any other group or 

combination actkg as an entity. 

9. "Representatives" means the Defendants' successors, assigns, offices, agents, 

sewan&, employees and those persons in active concert or participation with them who receive 

actual notice of this Order by personal senice or othehse. 

10. "Telemarketing" means the advertising, offering far sale, or sale of any good or 

service to any person by means of telephone sales presentations, either exclusively or in 

conjunction with the use of other advertising- 



11 "UFOC format" is defincd as the Unifom~ Franchse Offering Circulu disclosure 

format which has been adopted by the Norlh Amencan Securities Adnlinistraton' Associalion 

and is now accepted by the Comn-ission for use in lieu of the Franchise Rule's disclosure format. 

ORDER 

I- CObfYLT-ANCE WITH FRANCHISE RULE 

IT IS ORDERED, ADJUDGED A\D DECREED that, in connection with the 

advenising, telemarketing, offering for sale, licensing, co~tracting, sale or other promotion, in or 

affecting commerce, of a fi-anchise, the Defendants and their Representatives are hereby 

permikenrly restrained and enjoined f.om violating, or assisting others to violate, any provision 

of the Franchise Rule as promulgated, or as i t  may hereinafter be amended, including, but not 

limited to: 

A. Fa ihg  to provide any prospective h c h i s e e  with a complcte and accurate basic 

disclosure document containing all the information in the form required by Sections 

33G.l(a)(l)-(24j of the Fmch i se  Rule, in the manner and within the time &ame prescribed by the 

Rule; 

B. Failing to provide any prospective franchisee with an earnings claim document as 

required by Sections 436.l(b)-(e) of the Frachisc RuIe, in the manner and w i t h  the time frame 

prescribed by the Rule; 

C. Failing to include in any advertisement that states or suggests a s p i d c  level of 

sales, income or gross or net profifits that appears in a newspaper or other medium of general 

dissemination, including the Internet, the disclosures sequired by Section 436.1(e) of the 



Frsnzhise Rule, including a clear and conspicuous disclosure of thc number and percentage of 

prior purchasas known to have earned or made the amount claimed; 

D. Making any earnings claim or projection without having a reasonable basis lor the 

clarm or projection at the Dm:: such claim or projection is made, a s  required by Sections 

436.l(b)-(e) of the Franchise Rule; and 

E. Engaging in any other act or practice prohibited by the Franchise Rule, 16 C.F.R. 

Part 436, or faiIing to fulfill any obliga~ion imposed by the Rule. 

Provided, however, that if the Commission promulgates a trade regulation rule or rules hat  

modify or supersede the Franchise Rule, in whole or pzrt, Defendants shall comply filly and 

completely with all applicable requirements thereof on and after the  effective date of any such 

rule; andprovrded, jilrther, that Defendants may choose to comply with the disclosure 

rquirements of the Franchise Rule now in effect by fully and completely complying with the 

disclosure requirmenrs set forth in Ule UFOC format for so long as the current Pale remains in 

force. 

IL PROfllBXTXD REPRESENTATIONS 

lT IS FURTHER ORDERED that in connection with thc advertising, telemarketing, 

offering for sale, licensing, contracting, sale or other prornotioa, in or affecting commerce, of any 

Franchise, Business Venture, or income-generating product or service, the Defendants and their 

Representatives are hereby permanently restrained and enjoined fiom making, or assisting in the 

r n h g  of, any statement or representation ofmaterial fact that is fiaudulenf false, or misleading, 

whether directly or by implication, orally or in writmg, includmg, but not limited to, any or a11 of 



the following: 

A. The income, profit, or sales volume that a purchaser is  likely to acixeve; 

B. The income, profit or sales volun~e actually achieved by prior purchasers; 

C. The length of time that it is likely lo takc apurchaser to recoup Lhc entuc: 

purchase price or investmmt; 

D. The independence or authenricity of any 'third-party references, including persons 

represented to be prior purchasers, that are provided to potential purchasers; 

E. The amount of competition within, or a purchaser's temtorial rights to, any 

geographic territory; 

F. The availability or existence ofprofitable locations in a purchaser's geographic 

area; and 

G. The terms and conditions of any assurances, refunds or guarmtces of profitability 

that relate to any location savice or  conipany to which a Defendvlt refers a purchaser. 

W. BOND REQUIREMENT 

1T IS FLRTHER ORDERED that: 

A. Defendants are permanently restrained and enjoined from engaging, whether 

directly, in concert with others, or through any business, entity, corporation, subsidiary, division 

or other device, in the advertising, telemarketing, offering for sale, Licensing, contncting, sale or 

other promotion, in or affkcting cornmace, ofa Franchise or Business Venture, urless they £ k t  

obtain a surety bond in the principal sum of TWO HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS 

($200,000.00). 



B n e  terns and conditioils of thc bond reqxired by this Parapzph ("Bond Covered 

Activity") shall be as follows: 

1. The bond shall be conditioned upon complimcc with the provisions of 

this Order and with Section 5Ca) of the I;TC Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 45(a); 

2 .  The bond shall be con~inuous and remain in full force and effect as long as 

Defendants engage in any Bot:d Covered Activity, and it shall remain in effect for at least 

three (3) ycars after they have ceased to engage in Bond Covcred Activities; 

3. The bond shall cite this Order as the basis of the bond, and shall provide 

suety thereunder to consumers against financial loss resulting fiom any violation of the 

provisions of this Order, or Section 5(a )  ofthe FTC Act; 

4. The bond required by this Paragraph shall be issued by a surety 

company that: 

(a) is admitted to  do business in each of the states in whch Defendants 

conduct business; and 

(b) holds a Federal Certificate of Authority As Acceptable Surety On 

Federal Bond and Reinsuring; 

5. The bond shall be in favor of the Commission for the benefit of any 

consumer injured as a rcrult of any violation of the provisions of this Order or of Sections 

5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. $4  35(a), by Defendants, their agents or any other persons 

acting in concen with them or under tkir  authority, supervision or controll, while 

engaging in any Bond Covered Activity, 



6 .  The bond required pwsuant to this Paragraph is in addition to, and not in lieu 

of, my other bond requred by federal, state, or local law. The boztd requirements of this 

Order shall not be constnrcd to 11m( or preempt the regulatory powers of  any other 

federal state, regonal, caunry, local or other government agency or authority, and 

7 .  At lcast ten (1 0) days beforc commencing any Bond Covered Activity, 

Defendants shall provide a copy of any bond required by this Section to the Associate 

Dlrector for Marketing Prachces at the address specified in P a r a ~ a p h  X of this Order. 

Defendants, directly or through their officers, agents, servants, employees, attorneys, or 

any other persons acting in concert or participation with them or under their authority, 

supenision or control shall not disclose the existence of any surety bond required by this 

Order to any consumer or prospective customer without simuItaileously making the 

following bsclosure: "THIS BOND IS REQLZED BY ORDER OF THE U.S. 

DISTRICT COLTTIT W SETTLEMEhT OF CHARGES THAT GOLD LEAF 

DISTRlBUTION COlMPAUY, LUZ A UGARTEANTD JOSE V. UGARTE FAILED TO 

MAKE REQUIRED DISCLOSURES IN CONNECTION WITH THE SALE OF 

FRANCHISES AND BLSINESS VENTURES." Such lsclosure shall be made clearly 

and prominently, and in close proximity to any statement disclosing the existence of thc 

bond. In written material, the rcquired dsclosure shall be set forth in a clear and 

conspicuous manner, separated from all other text, in 100% black against a light 

background, in print at least as large as the main t d  of the sales material or document, 

and enc1oscd in a box contaming only the required cfisclosure. 



None of thc other Paragraphs of this Order shall relieve Defendants fiom conlplying with l h s  

Paagraph as a precondition to selling, or ,assisting others to sell, Franchises or Business 

Ventures. 

IV. T W S m R  OF CUSTOMER LISTS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Dcfendants and their Represcnt3rivcs arc hereby 

permanenrly restrained and enjoined from selling, renting, leasing, transfcmng or otherwise 

disclosing the name, address, telephone number, credit card number, bank account number, 

e-mail address, or orher identifyug information of any person who, in connection with the 

advertising, promotion, telemarketing, offering for sale or sale of any Franchise, Business 

Venture or income-generating product or senice, paid any money to any DeCendants at any rime 

prior to entry of this Order; provided, how eve^: that Defexdmts may disclose such identif)lng 

information to a law enforcement agency, or as required by any law, regulation (including the 

limited discIosures required by the Franchise Rule) or court order. 

V. CIVX PENALTY 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that judgment in the amount 

Dollars, (S ,,?9,3'i>O.~~fis hereby entend against the Dcfendants, jointly and severally, as a civil 

penalty, pursuant to Section 5(m)(l)(A) of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. $ 

45(m)(l)(A). 

A. Within five ( 5 )  days of receipt of notice of the entry of ehis Order, Defendants 

shall transfer the civil penalty payment in the form of a wire transfer or certified or cashier's 

check made payable to the Treasurer of the Unird States. The cbeck or written confirmation of 



the wire transfer shall be delivered to h e  Duector, Officc of Consuiner Litigation, Civil Division, 

P.O. Box 386, Washington, D.C. 20044. The cover letter accompanying the check shall jnclud: 

the title of this litigation and a reference to DJ# 102-3253. 

B. In the event of default on the payment required to be made by this Paragraph, the 

entire unpaid civil penalty, together with interest computcd under 28 U.S.C. 6 1961 -- accrued 

from the date of dcfault until the date of payment -- shall be immediately due and payable. 

Defendants agree that, in such event, the facts as alleged in the complaint filed in  this action shall 

be taken as m e  in any subsequent litigation filed by Plaintiff or the Commission to enforce their 

rights pursuant to this Order, including but not limited to z nondischargeability complaint in any 

subsequent bankruptcy proceeding. 

C. Defendants shall cooperate fully with Plaintiff and the Commission and their 

agents in d l  attempts to collect the amount due pursuant to this Para~aph  if any of the 

Defendants fiils to pay fully the amount due at the rime specified herein. In such an event, 

Defendants shall provide Plaintiff and the Cormmission with their federd and state tax returns for 

the preceding two years, and to complete new standard-form financia1 disclosure forms fully and 

accurately within tm (10) business days of receiving a request from Plaintiff or the Commission 

to do so. Plaintiff and the Commission may verify all information provided on theu financial 

disclosure forms with all appropriate third parties, includmg but not limited to hancial 

institutions. 

D. In acmrdmce with 31 U.S.C. $7701, the Defendants are hereby required to 

furnish to Plaintiff and the FTC their respective taxpayer identifymg numbers (social security 



numbers or employer identification numbers) which shall be used for purposes ~Ecollecting and 

reporting on any delinquent moun t  a.rising our of the Defendants' relationship with the 

govcmment. 

E. The Individud Defendants shall provide the FTC with clear, l e ~ b l e  and full-size 

photocopies ofhll valid dnver's licenses they possess, whjch will bc used for collection, 

reporting and compliance purposes. 

1'1- KOTICE TO CFtEDIT BUREAUS 

Within thirty (30) days of enny of this Order, the Defendants shzll notify each credit 

bureau to which any D e h d a n t  previously reported any non-payment by any of Defendants' 

customers or franchisees (with the intent or result that a negative item was placed on the 

customer's or franchisee's credit report) that such negative item should be removed h m  the 

customer's or fimchisee's credit report. 

M1. NONENFORCEMENT OF JUDGlmNTS 

Defendants are enjoined &om enforcing any judgment obtained prior to entry of this 

Order against any customer or fianchisee related to payment of amounts due to any Defendant in 

connection with the sale of any h c h i s e  or business opportunity. 

WI .  ACKNOUZEDGMEIST OF RECEIPT OF ORDER BY DEFENDANTS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that each Defendant within five (5) business days of 

receipt of this Order as entered by the Court, shall submit to Plaintiff and the Commission a 

truthfin1 sworn statement acknowledging meipt of this Order. 



IX. DISTRIBUTION OF ORDER BY DEFEKDANTS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for a period of five (5)  years from Lhe date of entry of 

this Order, Defendants shall: 

A. Provide a copy of this Order to, and obtain a signed and dated acknowledgment of 

reccipt of same from, each officer and director, each individual seming in a management 

capacity, all persomcl involved in responding to consumer complaints or inquiries, and all sales 

persomel, wheher designated as employees, consultants, independent contractors or othernise, 

within five ( 5 )  business days after rcccipt of this Order, and thereafter immediately upon 

ernploylng any such person, for any business'that Defendants directly or indirectly manage, 

control, or have a majority ownership interest in, that is engaged in the sale or distribution of any 

Franchise, Business Venture, or income-generating product or senice, or assisting others 

engaged in these activities; and 

B. Maintain for a period of three (3) years alter creation, and upon reasonable notice 

make avalable to representatives of Plaintiff or the Commission, the original s iped and dated 

acknowledgments of receipt of copies of this Order, as required in Subsection A of this 

Paragraph. 

X COMPLIANCE REPORTING BY DEFENDAPITS 

FI' IS FURTHER ORDERED that, in order that compliance with the provisions of this 

Order may be monitored: 

A. For a period of five (5) years after the date of entry of this Order, the Defendants 

shall notify theFTC in writine of the following; 



1. Any changes in the residence, mailing addresses and telephone numbers of 

an Individual Defendant, within ten ( 1  0) days ofthe date of such change; 

2. Any changes in lhc emp1o)nlmt status (including self-emplo~rment) of any 

Individual Defcndar~t, within ten (10) days of such changc. Such notice shall include the 

name and address of each business that the Individual Defendant is affiliated with, 

employed by, or perfoms services for, a starement of the nature of the business, and a 

statement of the Indwidual Defendant's duties and responsibilities in connection with the 

business; 

3. Any proposeG changes in corporate structure that may affect compliance 

obligations arising under this Order, including but not limited to a dissolution, 

assignment, sale, mcrger, or other action that would result in the emergence of a 

successor corporation; the creation or dissolution of a subsidary, parent, or affiliate that 

engages in any acts or practices subject to this Order; the filing of a bankruptcy petition; 

or a change in Ihc corporate name or address, at least thuty (3 0) days prior to sucl~ 

change,provided that, with respect to any proposed change in the corporation about 

which the Defendants learn less than thirty (30) days prior to the date such action is to 

take place, Defendants shall notify the Commission a s  soon a s  is pncticablc after 

obtaining such knowledge. 

B. One hundred eighty (180) days after the date of entry of this Order, each 

Defendant shall provide a written report to the FTC, sworn to under penalty of perjury, serting 

forth in detail the mannm and form in which they have conlplied and are complying with this 



Order. This report shall include, but not be limited to: 

1. Any changcs required to be reported pursuant to subparagraph (A) above; 

2 .  A copy of each acknowledgment of ~eceipt of this Order obtained by 

Defendants pursuant to this Order; 

3. A copy of any performance bond obixned by Defendants pllrsuant to this 

Order. 

C. For rhc purposes of this Order, Defendants shall, unless otherwise directed by the 

Commission's authorized representatives, mail all written notifications to the Commission to: 

Associate Director for bIarketing Practices 
Fedml Trade Commission 
600 Pennsylvania Ave. N.W. - Room 238 
Washington, DC 20580 
Re: United States v. Gold Leaf Distribution, Co., Luz Ugarte, and Jose 
Ugartc, Civ. No. 05-20441. 

D. For the purposes of this Order, Defendants shall, unless othenvise directed by a 

representative of Plaintiff, identify all written notifications to Plaintiff as provided in reference to 

DJ# 102-3253, and mail them to: 

Director, Office of Consumer Litigation 
U.S. Department of Justice - Civil Division 
P.O. Box 386, 
Washngton, D.C. 20044 

E. For purposes of the compliance reporting required by this Order, representatives 

of Plah5ff and the Commission are authorized to communicate drectly with Defendants. 



XI. AIOXITORING CO3IPLXhLYCE OF SALES PERSONNEL 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, in connection with any business that any Defendant 

directly or indirectly manages, controls or has a majority ownershp interest in, rhat is engaged in 

the sale or distribution of any Fraochise, Business Venture, or income-generating product or 

service, or assisting others engaged in these activities, Defendants and their Reprcsentati~es are 

hereby permanently restrained and enjoined born: 

A, Failing to take reasonable steps sufficient to monitor and ensure that all 

ernployecs and independent contractors engaged in sales or other customer servicc functions 

comply w~th  Paragraphs I and II of this Order. Such steps shall include adequate monitoring of 

sales presentations or other calls ~4th customers, and shall also include, at a minh1um, the 

following: 

1. Listening to the oral representations made by persons engaged in sales or 

other customer service bct ions;  

2, Establishing a procedure for receiving and responding to consumer 

complaints; and 

3. Ascertaining the number and nature of consumer complaints regarding 

transactions in which each employee or independcat contractor is involved; 

B. Failing promptly to investigate fi l ly any consumer complaint received by any 

business to which this Paragraph applies; a .  

C. Failing lo take corrective action with respect to any salcs person whom any 

Defendam or Representative determines is not complying with this Ordcr, which may include 



t r a ~ i n g ,  djjciplinlng, and/or terminatin$ such sales person; PI-ocided, I~owever, that this 

Paragaph does not authorize or require a Defendant to take any action that violates any federal, 

state, or local law. 

Xrl. RECORD-KEEPING PROVISTONS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for a period of five ( 5 )  yean &om the date of entry of 

t i l is  Order, in connection with any business that any Defendant directly or indirectly manages, 

controls or has a majority o~nershi? interest in, that is engaged in the sale or distribution of any 

Franchrse, Business Venture, or income-generating product or service, or assisting others 

engaged in thcse activities, Defendants and their agents, employees, officers, corporations, 

successors, and assigns, and those persons in active concert or participation with them who 

receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or otherwise, are hacby restrained and 

enjoined ftom failing to create, and thereafter to maintain for a period of three (3) years following 

the date of their creation, unless otherwise specified: 

A. Accounting records lhat reflect t l~e cost of goods or services sold, revenues 

generated, and the disbursement of such revenues; 

B. Personnel recorb accurately reflecting the name, address, telephone number and 

social security number of each person employed in any capacity by such business, including as an 

independent contractor, that person's job title or position; the date upon which the person 

commenced work; and the date and reason for the person's termination, ifapplicable; provided, 

however, that the businesses subject lo th is  requirement shall retain such records during the 

employment of any person, and for a period of two (2) years after the date of their termination; 



C. Cus1omer files containing the nmlc, address, telephone number, dollar amounts 

paid. quantity of goods or scrvices piuchased and description of goods or semices purchased, for 

all consumers to whom the business has sold, invoiced or shpped any Franchise, Business 

Venture or income-gtnerating product or service; 

D. Rccords that reflect, for every written or oral consumer complaint or r e h d  

requesl received by any of the Defendants or their Representatives, whetber directly or indirectly 

or through any third party: (1) the customer's name, address, telephone number; (2) the dollar 

amount paid by the consumer; (3) the written complaint or refund requesf if my; (4) the basis of 

the complaint or refund request, including the nanie of any salesperson complained about; (5) the 

nature and result of any investigation conducted concerning the complaint or r e h d  request; (6) 

each response and the date of the response to the complaint or refund request; and (7) any h a 1  

resolution of the complaint or r e h d  requesf and the date of the resoiution; and (8) in the evcnt 

of a denial of a refund request, the reason for the denial; and 

E. Copiej of all sales scripts, kaiujng materials, advertisements, or other marketing 

materials ufilized, which shall be retairmed for three (3) years after the last date of their 

dissemination or use. 

XITI. COMPLKXCE MOWITOlRZNG 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for the purpose of m o n i t o ~  and investigating 

compliance with any provision of this Order, 

A. Within ten (1 0) days of receipt of written notice &om a representative of the 

Commission or Plainfiff, cach Defendant shall submit additional wrirten reports, sworn to under 



ptnaliy of perjury; produce documents for inspcctian and copying; appear for deposition; andor 

provide enhy during normal business hours to any business location in such Defendant's 

possession or &rect or indirecr control to inspect the business operation; 

B. In addition, the Commission and Plaintiff are authorized to monitor compliance 

with ths  Order by all other lawful means, including but not limited to the following: 

1. obtaining discovery &om any person, wthout W e r  lcave of court, using 

the procedures proscribed by Fed. R. Civ. P. 30, 3 1,33,34,36, m d  45; 

2. posing a s  consumers and suppliers to: one or more of the Defendants, a 

Defendant's employees, or any other entity managed or controlled in whole or in part by 

any Defendan6 without the necessity of identification or prior notice; Provided that 

nothing in this Order shall limit the Commission's lawful use of compulsory process, 

pursuant to Sections 9 and 20 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 4 4 49,57b-1, to obtain any 

documentary matcrid, tangible things, testimony, or information relevant to unfair or I' 

; :+I 
deceptive acts or practices in or aft'ecting commerce (within the meaning of 15 U.S.C. $ , L 

' J 

45(a)(l)). 

C. Each Delendant shall permit representatives of the Commission orplaintiff to a . , 

; 
interview any employer, consul1ant, independent contractor, representdive, agent, or employee $ I 

$ .< 
i 
.s <>, who has agreed to such an interview, reIating in any way to any conduct subject to this Order. A" , ( 1  

3 y,, +Ti ,<:- , 

The person interviewed may have counsel present .. ..' . +> 
Q ,.. 

-53 - 
Xlv. OTHER REMEDlES L .  p 

This action, and the relief awarded herein, is in addition to and not in lieu of other 



remedies as may be provided by law, inclithng borh civil and criminal remedies. 

XV. RETENTION OF JURISDICTION 

I? IS FURTHER ORDERED that tllis Court shall retain jurisdiction of this matter for 

the purposes of constmction, modification, and enforcement of this Order. 

United stat& District Judge 


